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TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 12, 2013 9:54 A.M. 

THE COURT: Connell Living Trust, P066425. All 

4 right. Will everybody make their appearances? 

5 MR. MUGAN: Good morning, Your Honor, John Mugan, 

6 10690, for Eleanor Connell Ahern. 

7 MR. LUM: Good morning, Your Honor, Michael Lum, 

8 bar number 12997, co-counsel with Mr. Mugan. 

9 MR. POWELL: Good morning, Your Honor, Joey Powell 

10 appearlng on behalf of Jacqueline Montoya. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. All right. So this is a 

12 petition for declaratory judgment regarding limited 

13 interest of the trust assets and then there was -- I'm not 

14 sure if it was technically noticed for today, but we see on 

15 here that there is something filed with respect to 

16 referring this back to the Commissioner, but I didn't know 

17 if it was opposed, I didn't know if there was anything else 

18 filed on that one because --

19 

20 

21 

22 

MR. POWELL: Yeah, we filed --

THE COURT: -- that was kind of confusing. 

MR. POWELL: -- a response to that. 

MR. MUGAN: I believe there -- I believe you filed 

23 a response Thursday and then we filed a reply yesterday ln 

24 a moment of brilliance. I didn't realize yesterday was 

25 Veteran's Day when we got it Thursday and we filed it 

2 
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1 electronically yesterday. I don't know if our runner put 

2 one ln your drop box or not. 

3 THE COURT: Yeah and it hasn't shown up yet ln 

4 MR. MUGAN: I --that's my fault. I apologize. I 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: Oh I see, yeah. 

MR. MUGAN: Our office was open yesterday -­

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. MUGAN: -- and it didn't dawn on me that it 

10 was Veteran's Day. 

11 THE COURT: Yeah, exactly. Exactly. I remember 

12 those days. Now that I'm a government employee, it's a 

13 little different. 

14 So, with respect to that lssue of referring it 

15 back to the Commissioner --

16 

17 

MR. MUGAN: 

THE COURT: 

I -- if I may, Your Honor? I think -­

If it's 

18 MR. MUGAN: You know, I think it's a relatively 

19 simple issue. I think it needs to be handled first before 

20 we start getting into the substantive lssues. We didn't 

21 address the substantive issues because we filed this motion 

22 and, quite frankly, after this motion, we're going to be 

23 filing a motion to dismiss on issue preclusion and some 

24 other facts, but on this motion, and looking at it, I think 

25 the saving grace lS twofold. 
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5 
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8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

Number one, I don't see any Landreth II problems. 

I don't think we need a super judge. So I don't think we 

have Landreth problems and I think the issue is solely ln 

your discretion. I mean, you can do whatever you want. 

Our whole point is -- and I practiced law back ln 

the Midwest for 33 years and then came out here because all 

of our children and grandchildren are here and I've 

practiced here for 7 years and I never quite understood how 

Probate Court worked even though I appear there all the 

time and this luckily has hopefully clarified some of it. 

If you look at the law -- the Rule 4.16 of the 

local rules, it basically says that you, as Probate Judge, 

may hear whatever contested matters you select and you also 

may refer any contested matters on the probate calendar to 

a Master appointed by you for hearing and report. And 

Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 53 always gives the Court, 

you know, the power to appoint a Master in any case. 

And then, granted it's not a rule, it's a proposed 

rule on the new rules that have been redone and proposed 

and they're a long way from being adopted, but Rule 4.08 

basically is a rule of the longstanding practice in Probate 

22 Court. If the Probate Commissioner hears something and you 

23 don't request that it go to the Probate Judge, then you 

24 live with the Probate Commissioner otherwise you're golng 

25 to be doing forum shopping or the minute you get a bad 
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1 ruling, you want the Probate Judge and I know that's not 

2 the rule, but that's the practice as I understand it. 

3 And in this situation, back in 2009, exact same 

4 case, case number, exact same trust, there was a petition 

5 brought in part to construe and reform the trust. Sat down 

6 for a hearing, and notice given, hearing date comes, an 

7 order entered, notice of entry sent out, and that was it 

8 and part of the order construed and reformed the trust. 

9 Now we have 2013, one of the interested parties 

10 comes back and basically says that her mother is only 

11 entitled to 35 percent of the income from certain assets 

12 and we believe that even though we have no problem with you 

13 as a Judge, I've appeared before you a number of times, we 

14 believe that the Probate Commissioner is the one that's 

15 most familiar with it, has construed this and reformed it 

16 previously. We think it should go before him, that he 

17 should keep it. It would be just easler and simpler. 

18 In the response Mr. Powell said it's not a-- it 

19 was not a contested matter. We searched and searched ln 

20 Nevada law, there is no definition of a contested matter. 

21 I note -- like I said previously, this was all done on 

22 notice, etcetera, etcetera. The order wasn't stipulated 

23 to. There was another interested party: Shriners 

24 Hospital, and they were sent notice of the hearing. They 

25 were sent notice of the notice of entry. They never 
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1 stipulated. They never consented. There's an email 

2 attached to Mr. Powell's response, Exhibit A, where the 

3 attorney, Mr. Steadman, says that there lS an interested 

4 party, Shriners, they have the right to object, etcetera, 

5 etcetera. They got notice of the hearing and also the 

6 notice of the entry. 

7 So we believe it was a contested matter that was 

8 handled by the Probate Commissioner and now we're comlng 

9 back four years later, same case, same trust, and we're 

10 asking for a declare-- a declaration that my client's only 

11 entitled to 35 percent of the income and we believe that 

12 there is a substantive and direct connection between the 

13 two matters and if you look at the pleadings in the 2009 

14 case, you look at the consent of the party in this case, 

15 Mr. Powell's client, there are allegations and consents 

16 that basically say trust number two has these assets and 

17 our client is a lifetime beneficiary. 

18 And so, there is a direct connection, direct 

19 connection, and we believe that there may be issues of 

20 reforming and construing the trust because we believe if 

21 you look at the trust language and the facts and 

22 circumstances, it was obviously the intent of the decedent, 

23 W. N. Connell, that my client, his only child, be entitled 

24 to income from these Texas assets which were his sole and 

25 separate property that he brought into the marriage and he 
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2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

wanted to make sure that she recelve the income for as long 

as she lived and any alleged power of appointment that Mr. 

Powell's client is claiming that the second wife had was 

specifically subject to that life estate. 

So I think there's reformation issues. There's 

construction issues. Like I said, you know, regardless of 

how you rule, we're going to be filing a motion to dismiss 

on issue preclusion, etcetera, but we believe that Slnce 

the Probate Commissioner handled it previously, the 

longstanding practice, regardless of the proposed rules, 

you as Probate Judge, have the right at any time to refer 

the matter to a Master including the Probate Commissioner. 

We just think under the circumstances it would be 

better if the Probate Commissioner handled it because he's 

15 familiar. I know you've got plenty of things to do. If 

16 you want the case, that's fine, too. We don't have any 

17 problem with it; we just think under this circumstance it 

18 would be better if the Probate Commissioner handled it. 

19 THE COURT: Okay. So, I guess just trying to 

20 figure out procedurally where we are here, that motion lS 

21 technically not on calendar. I guess it's been fully 

22 briefed although the only thing that shows up in Odyssey lS 

23 the motion which, you know, we didn't see noticed. It 

24 didn't show up at least on our calendar from Master 

25 Calendar and an errata and I don't -- didn't see an 
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1 opposition or a reply. So, just, you know, for the record, 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

I don't know-- Mr. Powell, do you want to be heard on the 

lssue of whether this is really appropriately before this 

Court 

MR. POWELL: Yeah and --

THE COURT: -- and why you -- I guess, because -­

it's here because you requested that it be here. So, --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. In terms of the motion, their 

motion, you know, it's up to you. We've already briefed 

it. We've filed our response. Even though it had the 

heading of motion to reference back, it had substantive 

arguments. So I took it as though that was an objection to 

13 our petition. It was basically pleading in the alternative 

14 of here's our argument that we -- you know, we don't want -

15 - we want this to go back to the Commissioner to hear these 

16 arguments. 

17 THE COURT: And so then that really I guess gets 

18 us really to the issue here which is --

19 

20 

21 was --

22 

23 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- and I think that's what Mr. Mugan 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- referencing that ln 2009, a certain 

24 action was taken, --

25 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 
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1 THE COURT: -- and now ln 2013 there was a 

2 petition for declaratory relief. 

3 

4 

5 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: So --

MR. POWELL: We have that petition because 33 

6 years of precedent and status quo lS now being changed and 

7 that's the lssue before us lS there's-- there was--

8 agaln, 33 years of a 65/35 split of the income from oil, 

9 gas, and mineral rights in Texas and suddenly in basically 

10 June/July, Ms. Ahern decides: No, I'm entitled to 100 

11 percent. That 65/35 that I've been living with for 33 

12 years, I don't want to abide by that anymore. No logic, no 

13 reason, nothing, just I'm keeping 100 percent now. Okay? 

14 Well, that changes the status quo and 

15 THE COURT: Okay. So the issue lS -- because I 

16 think kind of the argument they were arguing here is that 

17 if --

18 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

19 THE COURT: -- you're golng to oppose this order 

20 reforming the trust back ln 2009, --

21 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

22 THE COURT: -- the process should have been 

23 followed in 2009 to do that; there was no such process. 

24 But the point is she didn't do anything until 2013. 

25 MR. POWELL: Well, no, actually the 2009 had no 

9 

AA 0215



1 effect on the 65/35 split. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. 

3 MR. POWELL: That the whole point of what '0 9 

4 did was to add provisions and that was the key. It added 

5 prOVlSlOnS to the trust to basically say: These are the 

6 remainder beneficiaries after Ms. Ahern's death which 

7 wasn't first spelled out. It was easily inferred that it 

8 would go to her issue, it was just spelled out because it 

9 wasn't addressed. So that was the point of the reformation 

10 was to say we need to we should probably just handle 

11 this now so that there's no lssues that arise later. 

12 THE COURT: So-- and so there's nothing that 

13 happened in 2009 that would have prompted any kind of an 

14 appeal? You're not like --

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MR. POWELL: No. 

THE COURT: -- it's not like [indiscernible] -­

MR. POWELL: There was nothing wrong with it. 

THE COURT: -- to do a late appeal of that earlier 

MR. POWELL: Exactly. None of that lS being 

21 appealed at all and that's why a consent was signed to say: 

22 We're fine with it, spelling out the fact that my sister 

23 and I are the remainder beneficiaries of trust number two. 

24 No problem. 

25 I mean, that -- it basically was to their benefit 
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1 to have that go into effect because basically it's spelled 

2 out. 

3 Not -- agaln, it was -- if you read the trust, the 

4 language clearly inferred that that was the normal way that 

5 it would go, it just -- it didn't expressly state it and 

6 that was the issue of the reformation. 

7 THE COURT: If there --Mr. Mugan's point that 

8 traditionally if a matter starts out with the Probate 

9 Commissioner, it stays with the Probate Commissioner unless 

10 you think some sort of -- you know, he has no authority to 

11 hear a jury trial for example. So that's-- it's got to 

12 come up here. And the way it's always been handled, as he 

13 pointed out, you know, it hasn't ever been really clear how 

14 we're going to handle probate. It's just sort of been 

15 grafted on as a --

16 

17 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- you know, to a highbred of what 

18 part of District Court it was going to be and no real clear 

19 rule. 

20 So I guess the point is what you're seeking now lS 

21 instead of filing a new action, there's -- you don't file a 

22 new action, it stays under the old action, 

23 

24 

25 close. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- which -- like probate cases never 
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1 MR. POWELL: Right. 

2 THE COURT: They are never --

3 MR. POWELL: Not 

4 THE COURT: -- over. 

5 MR. POWELL: -- ln a trust situation unless you 

6 affirmatively --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. POWELL: -- request that jurisdiction be taken 

9 off and then, in that case, you've got to get jurisdiction 

10 back. But, absent that, yeah, it just continues forever 

11 until 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

THE COURT: We've got a case from --

MR. POWELL: -- somebody 

THE COURT: -- 1972. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: So, I mean, 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- I -- it -- they just never 

MR. POWELL: They never end unless you do 

20 something affirmative 

THE COURT: Right. 

end. 

21 

22 

23 

MR. POWELL: -- to get rid of jurisdiction. 

THE COURT: Right. So you had to file under the 

24 old case number because that jurisdiction 

25 MR. POWELL: That --
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1 THE COURT: The Court's got jurisdiction there. 

2 So fine. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

Jurisdiction still exists. Yep. 

Okay. 

Yep. 

So, now it gets to the next point 

Yep. 

-- which lS who lS really the most 

9 appropriate person to hear the case? 

10 

11 

MR. POWELL: Right and --

THE COURT: I mean, because that really seemed 

12 like that was --

13 MR. POWELL: --basically it's not a knock on 

--

14 Commissioner Yamashita, it's really a situation of it's an 

15 urgent, pressing matter that we get a determination now and 

16 it's something that we feel that you're clearly capable of 

17 handling. There's not-- there's no special expertise 

18 which, you know, obviously you have -- you can do as you 

19 choose, but there's no special expertise that's required 

20 that Commissioner Yamashita would bring to this that you 

21 otherwise don't possess. 

22 So, really, it's a matter of efficiency and 

23 urgency because we need an order, not just a report and 

24 recommendation, as soon as possible because we've got big 

25 money at stake here, we have reliance on these 
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1 distributions, and as Mr. Goodsell pointed out with his 

2 case, it's a situation that you can be a war of attrition 

3 because these monies are being choked off that they have 

4 been relying on, my client and her sister, basically for 

5 the last four years when they stepped into the shoes then 

6 of their grandmother, Marjorie, who had for the previous 29 

7 years been receiving 65 percent of oil, mineral, and gas 

8 lncome. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

So, 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

POWELL: 

COURT: 

Okay. So that --

the whole point lS 

The question lS -­

Yeah. 

-- you know, lS this -- I can't think 

15 of any other way to frame it and I don't know if Mr. Mugan 

16 necessarily accused you of this, but is this forum 

17 shopping? Because that's what I want to make real clear. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: You're not seeking to -­

MR. POWELL: Not -- no. 

THE COURT: -- reform anything that Commissioner 

22 Yamashita has previously done? 

23 

24 

MR. POWELL: No. 

THE COURT: It's just a question: Who is more 

25 perfect to hear this? So what are you looking for because 
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1 

2 

3 

MR. POWELL: We're looking for --

THE COURT: -- if you're looking for it to be 

4 decided on just, you know, the pleadings or lS this 

5 something where you need some discovery and an evidentiary 

6 hearing? 

7 MR. POWELL: I think we're good with the pleadings 

8 because 

9 THE COURT: Because it's a petition for 

10 declaratory relief. 

11 MR. POWELL: I think we're good with the 

12 pleadings. We can't we -- there's nothing further that 

13 I can submit to you in terms of testimony or anything else 

14 other than to -- and I don't think this is being contested 

15 and if it is, then I'm super surprised because we have tax 

16 returns all the way up through 2012 showing a 65/35 split. 

17 It's been that way for the last 33 years; only over the 

18 summer has this now changed. 

19 and white there. 

So, the issue is pretty black 

20 The other thing is on the one tax return we have 

21 which we can't locate the Form 706. The IRS has been 

22 asked. They don't have a copy of it. It was prepared 

23 here. The preparer doesn't have a copy of it and, I mean, 

24 how can you really expect it? It was a from '79/'80. 

25 So, I mean, that's going back a long time to try to get 
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1 form way back before we had electronic savlng documents 

2 through electronic means. So, we just don't have it. 

3 But going back to that return that was filed, it 

4 shows a 65/35 split. That's the way, again, it's gone 

5 Slnce 1980 when Mr. Mugan's client became a co-trustee of 

6 the trust. So we've got the precedent. There's nothing 

7 more than we can declare. 

8 THE COURT: What was golng on ln Texas? That was 

9 another point where I wasn't quite clear if 

10 MR. POWELL: There was a -- oh 

11 THE COURT: -- there was maybe a -- and, like I 

12 said, I don't want to accuse anybody of forum shopping, 

13 MR. POWELL: Sure. Sure. 

14 THE COURT: but it seemed like there was a 

15 concern about that that might be some forum shopping. 

16 MR. POWELL: Yeah, I don't know if you could call 

17 it forum shopping. The issue there was the fact that there 

18 it was Texas property and it's --

19 THE COURT: Right. 

20 MR. POWELL: -- related to Texas real estate. 

21 THE COURT: Right. 

22 MR. POWELL: So I think that was the lSSUe there 

23 lS covering all bases because I -- it's basically a 

24 situation where, again, you have 33 years of the status quo 

25 and then all of a sudden the plug is pulled and then the 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

question lS: Wait a second, how do we put the plug back 

in? And so, that was part of it was basically I think just 

simply getting a declaratory ruling there on the lssue. 

There's -- the accusations, you know, -- and it 

upsets me when there's not full disclosure given. There 

was a mistake made in the Texas filings and immediately 

7 upon the Texas attorney realizing the mistake, it was --

8 there was a phone call made, it was corrected. 

9 So it's a half-truth to say: Well, you tried 

10 ln bad faith, you tried to avert this and done this. 

11 Nobody has ever made any assertion that Ms. Ahern is not 

12 the adopted daughter of Marjorie Connell, not-- that's not 

13 even an lssue. They spent time briefing the issue somehow 

14 trying to establish that. It's not a-- it's a nonlssue. 

15 The Texas return -- the Texas filing was simply a 

16 mistake. Texas counsel didn't realize it. Upon being 

17 notified he made a mistake called opposlng counsel and said 

18 I made a mistake. You know, your client is clearly this. 

19 That was my error as the drafting attorney and that's it. 

20 It wasn't in bad faith. Nobody is looking to hoodwink 

21 anybody or do anything like that. 

22 The situation that we have here lS we need an 

23 order and so 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Well but I guess my question 

MR. POWELL: -- going back to --
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1 

2 

3 

THE COURT: lS it you're --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- trying to get a different order 

4 here from --

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

MR. POWELL: No. 

THE COURT: -- what you're getting out of Texas -­

MR. POWELL: No. 

THE COURT: -- because what lS the Texas -­

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- golng to be asked to do? 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. No, I'm glad to kind of bring 

12 you up to speed on that. 

13 Basically, the Texas proceeding has essentially 

14 been simply stayed. Ms. Ahern has Texas counsel. They had 

15 a mediation there. It was unsuccessful. The last report I 

16 got is basically Texas is just kicking the can down 

17 basically saying: No, really, Nevada should probably be 

18 deciding this because that's where the trust has 

19 jurisdiction. 

20 So, my understanding is that whole proceeding lS 

21 just simply stayed pending this outcome. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. So, I guess then what are you 

23 looking for? Are you looking --

24 MR. POWELL: We're looking for a declaratory --

25 THE COURT: I guess --
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1 

2 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

Yeah. 

--my question lS: What's the 

3 procedure that you think would be followed and who is more 

4 appropriately, I guess, set up to hear that? If it's a 

5 matter of having a hearing and putting this evidence on, 

6 because, I mean, when you're seeking declaratory relief, it 

7 seems to me that -- I mean, you can get a declaratory 

8 judgment basically on the pleadings, but I think that 

9 they've got -- you know, their initial response was: We 

10 think this has to go back to the Commissioner because there 

11 lS -- this has already been determined and I understand 

12 your position lS that that order didn't really determine 

13 anything that effects 

14 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

15 THE COURT: -- this lSSUe that you've got golng on 

16 right now, --

17 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

18 THE COURT: -- but they've indicated that their 

19 next step is they want to file a motion to dismiss this 

20 because they think that it does. So, --

MR. POWELL: Which I think is something 21 

22 

23 

THE COURT: -- logistically, what's the schedule? 

MR. POWELL: Which I think lS something that you 

24 can basically handle right now just by looking at the 

25 pleading that the petition that was filed, nowhere in that 
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1 petition is there any declaration of basically asking for -

2 - them, in their prayer, asking for declaration that Ms. 

3 Ahern has 100 percent interest in that income. It's solely 

4 a reformation petition saylng: We want to add provlslons 

5 so that it's clear who the remainder beneficiaries of trust 

6 number two are and that's another key function. 

7 The whole thing was -- this was -- and it gets a 

8 little confusing because they use the term trust one, trust 

9 two, trust three. Trust one was essentially just when both 

10 of the settlers were living, they refer to that as trust 

11 one, basically an undivided trust. Then at the first 

12 death, which was Mr. Connell, they did a division of the 

13 trust number two, trust number three. Trust number three 

14 was the survivor's trust along with a marital trust because 

15 back at that time there was no such thing as what we do now 

16 with the martial trust as being the third sub trust. So, 

17 it basically -- whatever was determined to me the marital 

18 monies for purposes of tax deferment went into the 

19 survivor's trust. 

20 decedent's trust. 

Trust number two was essentially the 

21 So, when they were reforming the trust, the 

22 provisions that they were adding to were dealing with trust 

23 number two. That's another issue as well and what they did 

24 is basically-- and, agaln, I'm not saying anything that's 

25 not in the pleadings and then in the accompanying order. 
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1 All they sought was to act -- basically what I would say 

2 clarification provisions saying: At the death of Ms. Ahern 

3 that Jacqueline Montoya and her sister, Kathryn, would be 

4 the residuary beneficiaries of that trust. It also 

5 basically prescribed the way that that trust would be 

6 administered for Jacqueline and Kathryn, and then it also 

7 prescribed as well that -- who would be the successor 

8 trustees of trust number two upon Ms. Ahern's death. 

9 Currently Ms. Ahern is the only trustee of trust 

10 number two. So, that's what that '09 petition did. It had 

11 nothing to do with a declaration of rights saylng: Ms. 

12 Ahern now owns 100 percent of the income. My client and 

13 her sister would have never agreed to that. That wasn't 

14 even remotely in the mindset of why they would agree to 

15 that. It wasn't even -- it wasn't being asked. 

16 And so, ln my response to their motion, agaln, 

17 relying entirely on a consent? You're consenting to the 

18 prayer. The prayer is the substance of the petition. Any 

19 other facts that get thrown in are irrelevant. You're 

20 again, the substance of the petition is the prayer. We all 

21 know that. The only thing that can be in the order lS 

22 what's asked for in the relief, ln the prayer. 

23 So, they had no reason to object to that. That's 

24 why they signed consents. Yeah, fine, add in the 

25 clarifying language. We want it. It's not detrimental to 
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1 them. 

2 And to the assertion, agaln, that contested, we're 

3 on two different wavelengths then in terms of what 

4 contested means because the whole point of the approved 

5 list in Probate Court is there is not an objection filed, 

6 therefore-- meaning there is no contest to what's being 

7 asked for and the fact that you have to give notice and a 

8 notice of a hearing, well, you have to do that for every 

9 petition, and the fact that you don't necessarily secure 

10 consents from anybody, that doesn't defer it from being put 

11 on the approved list, which this was. There was no oral 

12 argument at this hearing. It was -- the order got rubber 

13 stamped. So, that's 

14 THE COURT: Well I 

15 MR. POWELL: my point lS this lS not a --

16 THE COURT: But I guess the 

17 MR. POWELL: contested matter. 

18 THE COURT: -- point, as I understood it, the 

19 point that was being made about shouldn't this be heard by 

20 the Commissioner is isn't he the more perfect person to 

21 make that determination of when I entered that order ln 

22 2009 granting this reforming of the trust it was or was not 

23 addressing an ultimate issue here and I understand your 

24 point that you don't want to go through that process and 

25 then have to object to that report and recommendation and 
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1 then come up here, but it seems like that's kind of the 

2 suggested method --

3 MR. POWELL: Well, --

4 

5 

6 

7 

THE COURT: -- that Mr. Mugan is --

MR. POWELL: Yeah, and I'm not sure why. 

THE COURT: seeking. 

MR. POWELL: I don't really understand. They are 

8 two separate things. It's apples and oranges what's going 

9 on here and so I don't think there's any need to clarify 

10 because the order itself doesn't reference any declaration. 

11 If you read the order, it doesn't reference any declaration 

12 about: OhMs. Ahern is 100 percent -- has 100 percent 

13 interest in these oil, mineral, and gas rights. It doesn't 

14 say that. The only thing it says -- and that's, again, if 

15 the Commissioner looks at the order, there's 

16 THE COURT: And certainly it --

17 

18 that. 

19 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

nothing you can ever infer from 

-- would seem that if she had thought 

20 that it did, she would have taken that action ln 2009. 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 but --

MR. POWELL: Exactly. Exactly. 

MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, if it --

THE COURT: That's a good point. Thanks. 

MR. MUGAN: I don't mean to interrupt Mr. Powell, 
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1 MR. POWELL: But so 

2 MR. MUGAN: This lS a really important lssue, 

3 really important. 

4 THE COURT: Okay. 

5 MR. MUGAN: And you look at the petition that was 

6 filed ln 2009 and here's what it says in part: 

7 

8 

Trust number two owned land and oil and gas shares 

ln reserve and income located in Upton County, excuse 

9 me, Texas. 

10 That's what we're talking about in this 

11 declaration, petition today, and paragraph 19 of that 

12 petition in 2 0 0 9 says: 

13 Pursuant to Article 4th, and they're referring to 

14 Article 4th of the Trust Agreement, which article 

15 governs the administration of trust number two, all 

16 income from the oil assets lS to be paid to the 

17 petitioner, and the petitioner is my client, as the 

18 residual beneficiary during her lifetime. 

19 I agree it's black and white. It's already been 

20 decided and that was stated in the 2009 petition and Mr. 

21 Powell and his clients say: Doesn't have anything to do 

22 with it. Doesn't have anything to do with it. It's got 

23 everything to do with it. 

24 And you look at their consent that his client 

25 signed, she not only consents to it, she makes an 
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1 affirmative statement and says: 

2 I am a contingent income beneficiary of the trust. 

3 I have read the petition and believe it to be true and 

4 correct to the best of my knowledge. I hereby consent 

5 to the petition and request that the Court enter an 

6 order approving the petition in its entirety. 

7 I don't know how the two of them aren't related. 

8 That's what we're arguing about in his declaratory 

9 petition. My client's not entitled to all of the lncome. 

10 The order that was entered in 2009, it's based on the 

11 petition with affirmative allegations which his client 

12 consented to and she even admits she's the contingent 

13 lncome beneficiary. 

14 So, how you can say they're completely separate 

15 and distinct and how this shouldn't be handled by the 

16 Probate Commissioner, at least the motion to dismiss since 

17 he's the one who handled the previous matter, I --in my 

18 limited intellect, I don't see it. I think they're 

19 intricately-- there's a substantive, intricate 

20 relationship between that action and what was done and pled 

21 in there and what they're asking for now. 

22 And, you know, I don't want to get into 

23 substantive matters because basically we're just asking for 

24 a motion here. We really didn't address the substantive 

25 matters --
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1 THE COURT: Well but see [indiscernible] me. 

2 motion that you filed isn't technically on my calendar 

3 today. 

The 

4 MR. MUGAN: Right. Right. And I think he said 

5 that it was all right and we can go ahead with it unless I 

6 misunderstood him. 

7 

8 fine. 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 that --

17 

18 

MR. POWELL: No, let's do it. Let's do it. It's 

I briefed it. I'm 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: -- fine with it. So let's go. 

THE COURT: Okay. But I haven't seen your brief. 

MR. POWELL: My response? 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

Haven't seen it. 

THE COURT: So, you know, that's my problem lS 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- we've got this fugitive motion out 

19 there that was filed and not calendared, but if the parties 

20 feel that it's appropriate to address it, then I guess we 

21 can address it and -- because then I think we get down then 

22 to the next point which lS it sounds to me that even if 

23 this Court keeps jurisdiction, that Mr. Mug an wishes to 

24 file his motion to dismiss, that -- and it seems to me that 

25 the declaratory judgment action then -- it's kind of a 
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1 countermotion almost to it that you're seeking-- your 

2 petitioner seeks declaratory judgment and their opposition 

3 lS: No, we oppose that and our countermotion is that there 

4 is -- there's already been a ruling on this essentially by 

5 the Commissioner, despite the fact that she didn't act on 

6 it for four years, there's a ruling from the Commissioner 

7 ln 2009 that governs this, that she's acting under the 

8 authority of. So, this should have already been decided. 

9 MR. POWELL: Which I would have no problem with 

10 except let's read the order. 

11 THE COURT: Right. Okay. 

12 

13 that. 

14 

15 

16 

MR. POWELL: The order doesn't correct any of 

THE COURT: I'm not 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: I don't really want to get to the 

17 merits, but I'm trying to figure out the procedure what we 

18 are trying --

19 

20 

21 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- to do here today. 

MR. MUGAN: Excuse me, Your Honor, but maybe the 

22 answer is to kick it out two weeks, give the Court an 

23 opportunity to read the pleadings and then we come back and 

24 try and answer whatever questions you have. If that -- if 

25 that's agreeable to Mr. Powell and you, I'm willing to do 
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1 whatever the Court wants to do. 

2 THE COURT: Okay. Well because see -- and I agree 

3 that with the -- the first thing to be decided is who's 

4 going to hear it. Is this something that's more 

5 appropriate for this Court to hear? Is it more appropriate 

6 for this to be referred to the Commissioner to hear and 

7 then seek this you know, appeal any report and 

8 recommendations? 

9 Mr. Powell's clients are-- you know, position is: 

10 We want this to go faster. We don't want the additional 

11 built-in delay of getting a report and recommendation and 

12 then doing an appeal on that. 

13 MR. POWELL: Yes. 

14 THE COURT: We want this all decided now. We 

15 think the Court can hear all of it. Both the question of 

16 was this in fact previously ruled on by the Commissioner, 

17 that's-- basically, that's the opposition to the petition 

18 of declaratory relief is: No, you can't have this ruling 

19 that you're seeking because it's already ruled on by the 

20 Commissioner and you've lost it or you consented to the 

21 action that she's taking now, whatever the opposition lS. 

22 It sort of seems to me that procedurally that's where we 

23 are with it that 

24 MR. MUGAN: Well, yeah, I didn't intend to do 

25 that. What I intended to do is take it one step at a time. 
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1 I think the first question lS who is this matter 

2 golng to be heard by: Your Honor or the Probate 

3 Commissioner? And so that's the issue that I was trying to 

4 get decided and then whoever it is going to be, whether 

5 it's you or Commissioner Yamashita, then we're going to 

6 file our motion to dismiss based on issue preclusion. 

7 I think the first step is to decide whether this 

8 Court or the Probate Commissioner is golng to handle this 

9 matter and then the next step is for me to either file the 

10 motion to dismiss or an opposition. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. All right. Well, so then if 

12 you're prepared to have this unfiled motion -- or unnoticed 

13 motion ruled on now, I appreciate the point, Mr. Mugan, 

14 that practice has been that if the Commissioner hears 

15 something, then it's going to-- he's going to continue the 

16 hearing. You know, whether he actually took action on 

17 this, he signed an order on something that was unopposed 

18 and consented to. I think ultimately whatever he would rule 

19 on issue preclusion would be appealed up here anyway. The 

20 request has been made by these petitioners that we skip 

21 that step and just come here. So I'll grant the 

22 petitioner's request and I'll hear the-- I'll keep 

23 jurisdiction over this and we'll keep this motion here. 

24 So, respectfully, deny the motion to remand back to the 

25 Commissioner. 
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1 Now we have this question of this petition for 

2 declaratory relief --

3 MR. MUGAN: If I may 

4 THE COURT: Yeah. 

5 MR. MUGAN: Pardon me, Your Honor, if I may say 

6 one thing? 

7 THE COURT: Okay. 

8 MR. MUGAN: I just want to clarify the record. If 

9 part of your ruling lS based on the fact that it was on the 

10 approved list and rubber stamped, I don't think there's 

11 ever been any showing of that. In fact, I don't think that 

12 was an allegation in his response on that. This, today, is 

13 the first time I've heard that. So, I just 

MR. POWELL: It was 14 

15 MR. MUGAN: -- want to clarify the record. 

16 MR. POWELL: It was addressed. I can't say with 

17 100 percent certainty because I haven't located a 

18 transcript of that, but I can say with nearly 99.99 percent 

19 certainty it would have been on the approved list and there 

20 would not have been additional oral argument and that 

21 implication is addressed in my response. 

22 first time I'm ralslng it here. 

So it's not the 

23 MR. MUGAN: I just wanted the record to reflect 

24 that, Your Honor. 

25 THE COURT: It's likely that it wasn't because 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

there's no minutes. 

THE CLERK: There are minutes. If you go ahead 

and click on it, it's just it is so old, it didn't locate 

it. 

THE COURT: I didn't see minutes. 

THE CLERK: Here's the-- you're clicking too far. 

THE COURT: Oh. 

THE CLERK: They just didn't go over because -­

THE CLERK: Yeah, it says: Matter being on the 

approved list there being no objection. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: So it was on the approved list. 

MR. POWELL: It was on the approved list, yeah. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

15 MR. MUGAN: Very good. 

16 THE COURT: All right. So, anyway I don't see any 

17 reason to send it back to him and then because the 

18 request is of the petitioner's that it be heard here and we 

19 skip that step. Okay, fine. 

20 So having -- moving on then, I think though, Mr. 

21 Powell, that the point is, and I don't know, Mr. Mugan, 

22 what I appreciate your position being that we have to 

23 take this step by step. First you have to see, you know, 

24 our -- we have the right to oppose this and our opposition 

25 is going to be that this has already been decided. So 
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1 however you want to present that because the otherwise 

2 it's a petition for declaratory relief which lS you need to 

3 oppose it or file some -- whatever -- and I guess my 

4 question is: Do you view this as something that requires -

5 -that can all be done on affidavits because it's strictly 

6 a legal issue? Do you need testimony? 

7 MR. MUGAN: No, I think it's going to need 

8 testimony if we -- you know, if we get to that point. I 

9 really think there's going to need to be some evidence. 

10 There's two sides --

11 THE COURT: Okay. 

12 MR. MUGAN: to every story and you need to hear 

13 her side of the story. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. 

15 MR. MUGAN: My client's side. 

16 THE COURT: All right. So, lS it something that 

17 requlres any kind of -- lS it more like a preliminary 

18 matter like an injunction hearing where you don't need 

19 discovery first or are you going to need discovery? This 

20 is just what 

21 

22 

MR. MUGAN: Oh I --

THE COURT: I'm trying to just figure out is 

23 how we schedule this and set this up procedurally to go 

24 forward. 

25 MR. MUGAN: I think we're golng to need some 
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1 discovery. 

2 

3 

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Powell. 

MR. POWELL: No. I don't need any. I mean, it --

4 Mr. Mugan was just saying a moment ago that it's black and 

5 white, it's already been decided, and now we're saying it's 

6 not. So, --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. POWELL: -- I think 

9 THE COURT: So I guess the 

10 MR. POWELL: We don't need discovery on our end. 

11 There's nothing more we can offer to establish that 33 

12 years of precedent has been established. 

13 more that we can go by. 

There's nothing 

14 If that's what we're intending to ralse that issue 

15 that it was done improperly back then, I don't know what 

16 more we can go to than saying that this is the way that 

17 it's been done and, really, at the basis of what we're 

18 asking for is if they want to now dispute that 65/35, let -

19 - what we would ask is put let's go back to the status 

20 quo and then we'll haggle it out from there, but it's not 

21 fair to have my clients, my client choked off from 

22 receiving what they've been-- what she's been getting for 

23 the last four years, her grandmother has been getting for 

24 the prevlous 29 years and that's the lssue. 

25 I'm not sure how the delay benefits anybody. To 
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1 me, this is something you want declared now. Both sides 

2 apparently feel it's black and white. So let's go. I 

3 mean, again, there's nothing more we can offer than what 

4 we've already established. I can glve -- we can provide 

5 tax returns. Those are just pleadings. There's no 

6 testimony that can be offered in that regard. 

7 It's precedent. It's been 33 years of this split. 

8 If that's -- if that lssue -- I don't think that lssue lS 

9 ln dispute. If the lssue ln dispute lS: Well, it 

10 shouldn't have been that way, okay, fine. Then that's up 

11 to them now to change what's been, but you can't just, 

12 agaln, pull the plug and then go: No, I'm not putting it 

It doesn't work that way and 13 back ln. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. So you're seeking some sort of 

15 

16 MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, 

17 MR. POWELL: That's why I'm seeking the 

18 declaratory --

19 THE COURT: -- preliminary --

20 MR. POWELL: -- judgment lS so that we can go back 

21 to the trustee -- trustee, again, not beneficiary, the 

22 trustee and say: 

23 split. What 

This must be honored. 

24 

25 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MUGAN: The --
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1 THE COURT: So you're looking for a preliminary 

2 relief which is to maintain the status quo 

3 MR. POWELL: Exactly. 

4 THE COURT: -- pending a determination on the 

5 underlying issue? 

6 MR. POWELL: Exactly. Exactly. 

7 THE COURT: Okay. Got it. Thanks. 

8 MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, it's black and white I 

9 think in my motion to dismiss, that issue preclusion. 

10 That's what I mean when it's black and white. If they get 

11 over that hurdle, then I think there's evidentiary issues. 

12 You know, he keeps talking about urgency and 

13 returning to the status quo, his client -- and if you look 

14 at their petition, they state that my client is entitled to 

15 at least 35 percent, at least 35 percent -- no argument 

16 about that. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

MR. POWELL: No argument about that. 

MR. MUGAN: No argument. 

MR. POWELL: Nope. No. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MUGAN: Her Texas attorney sends a letter to 

22 all of the oil companies 

23 THE COURT: When you say her ln Texas, you mean 

24 the petitioners? 

25 MR. MUGAN: She had -- the petitioner. Not Mr. 
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1 Powell, but her Texas attorney sends a letter to all of the 

2 oil companies paying the royalties, encloses copies of the 

3 petition up here, and doesn't say: There's 65 percent ln 

4 dispute, we want you to hold the 65 percent. No. The 

5 letter says: There's a dispute, we want you to hold it 

6 all. You know, even though there's no dispute about my 

7 client getting 35 percent, we want you to hold it all. And 

8 what did the oil companies do? They hold until we show 

9 them the petition and try and convince them and the biggest 

10 one is Apache, the one who really pays the money and we 

11 haven't convinced them yet that they should release the 35 

12 percent. 

13 So this urgency and return to the status quo, it's 

14 a little fuzzy, a little fuzzy because they claim they want 

15 it but yet they tie us up. 

16 

17 done. 

18 

19 

20 

21 it's --

22 

23 yours. 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Let's go back to 65/35 and we're 

MR. MUGAN: No. 

MR. POWELL: And then we can go 

MR. MUGAN: That's not going to happen because 

MR. POWELL: Oh, so glve us our money but you keep 

THE COURT: One at a time. 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 
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1 THE COURT: So, Mr. Mugan, I guess my problem -- I 

2 guess it's-- I'm just trying to understand 

3 MR. MUGAN: Right. 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

THE COURT: --procedurally how we're golng to go 

forward. The petition for declaratory relief doesn't seek 

an emergency finding. It is emergency relief saylng, you 

know, at least maintain the status quo pending a 

resolution. 

MR. MUGAN: No. 

THE COURT: But it sounds to me like that might be 

11 a perfectly reasonable option to order -- enter a 

12 preliminary order saying: Let's maintain the status quo 

13 and we'll make a determination as to who is correct. 

14 MR. MUGAN: Well, I think if you want to go that -

15 -down that line, down that path, and there's no argument 

16 that my client's entitled to 35 percent. There's a dispute 

17 over the 65 percent and whose it's golng to go to. The oil 

18 company holds 65 percent until the dispute is determined. 

19 That would seem to be more logical to me than to kind of 

20 make a predetermination and then say: Well, we're going to 

21 glve them 65 percent. 

22 There's reasons for what happened in the past, the 

23 33 years, and I'll be glad to get into them if you want me 

24 to but then we're starting to get into substantive lssues 

25 and stuff, but there's reasons, there's explanations, 
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1 there's reasons why it changed. There's Nevada statutes 

2 that we can cite, etcetera, but I don't want to get into 

3 the substantive issues. 

4 But addressing your point, what's in dispute is 

5 the 65 percent. If anything, I would think you just hold 

6 that -- hold the 65 percent and that doesn't go to anybody 

7 

8 THE COURT: Well, here's my question and this is 

9 why I asked earlier, is there some forum shopping golng on 

10 here because what's happening in Texas? Is this Texas 

11 attorney just takes it on himself to send an order -- to 

12 send around a petition that hasn't even got an order 

13 attached to it and oil companles act on that? 

14 MR. POWELL: There's an obligation because they 

15 don't want to payout to anybody anytime there's a dispute 

16 and that's the whole thing is-- it's-- if they don't, 

17 there's lssues there with them not having notified that 

18 there's a dispute as to these. 

19 The oil companies, like anything else, it's almost 

20 kind of like an interpleader. They want to be informed: 

21 Wait a second. Okay. 

22 notify us. 

23 And I -- if 

There's disputes here, you better 

and I could be mistaken and so 

24 please don't hold me to this, but I believe there's some 

25 boiler plate in there -- in these contracts that are 
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1 

2 

3 

voluminous basically saylng if there's any other claims 

going on here, you better notify us immediately. That's my 

understanding of the way it's done. I'm not a Texas 

4 authority. I don't know 

THE COURT: I don't think any of us would hold 5 

6 

7 

8 

ourselves out to be authority for --

MR. POWELL: Yeah, and the whole 

THE COURT: -- Texas oil and gas law. 

9 MR. POWELL: --oil and gas-- and, I mean, that's 

10 really almost a Texas-based 

11 THE COURT: Yeah. 

12 

13 country. 

14 

15 

MR. POWELL: I mean, that's -- Texas lS oil 

THE COURT: It is its own thing. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. It's its own entity. 

16 So the-- it's not an issue of simply retaliating 

17 or anything like that. It's basically giving notice to 

18 this third party to say: I'm putting you on notice, you 

19 know, and basically there's a dispute. We have a dispute 

20 here from the way it was being originally anticipated and 

21 golng. 

22 

23 

So, I mean, 

MR. MUGAN: I've been through those leases and 

24 I've been through those addendums and they're about that 

25 thick and, again, don't hold me to it, but I sure don't 
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1 remember any provlslon like that and this attorney lS 

2 representing Ms. Montoya down there in Texas and I presume 

3 he wouldn't be doing anything without her direction and 

4 consent. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. But here's my question is 

6 procedurally, how do we go forward? If there's been some 

7 action taken, and it sounds to me like Texas Court doesn't 

8 -- Probate Court doesn't want to take jurisdiction over 

9 this, they will honor any order entered if that's what the 

10 point lS. Then the question is: At this point in time, is 

11 there any proper order? Because lS what they're -- is what 

12 the oil and gas companles are doing in reaction to this 

13 premature? There has been no finding that anybody lS 

14 entitled to any of this money other than I think it says 

15 pretty clearly that everybody agrees that 35 percent goes 

16 to Eleanor. Nobody disputes the 35 percent to Eleanor. 

17 So, Mr. Powell's suggestion is let's just go back 

18 to the status quo and I understand, Mr. Mugan, your 

19 opposition to that lS the undisputed portions should be 

20 distributed but if you distribute the disputed portion, 

21 there's no way for your client to get it back if ultimately 

22 it's determined it is hers. 

23 MR. MUGAN: Well, I don't think that was 

24 requested. 

25 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 MR. MUGAN: You know, I think we're golng way 

2 beyond what we were here today for, number one. 

3 

4 

Number two, Texas --

THE COURT: What we are here today for technically 

5 lS an unopposed motion for declaratory relief. 

6 MR. MUGAN: Well, I am appearing personally to 

7 oppose it. 

8 

9 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MUGAN: Texas has not turned down 

10 jurisdiction, Your Honor. 

11 THE COURT: Okay. 

12 MR. MUGAN: What happened was that petition was 

13 filed. My client was never given any notice of it. The 

14 will was admitted to probate and the -- Ms. Montoya was 

15 appointed personal representative down there. 

16 THE COURT: Why would the will be admitted to 

17 probate in Texas? I mean, nobody lived ln Texas, did they? 

18 MR. POWELL: I think those rights -- dealing with 

19 the rights --

20 THE COURT: Right, but nobody lived ln Texas? 

21 MR. MUGAN: I don't understand that either, Your 

22 Honor. 

23 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Well it was just 

MR. MUGAN: Died a Nevada 

MR. POWELL: It was --
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1 

2 

3 

MR. MUGAN: -- resident. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: I was going to say she's a Nevada 

4 resident. 

5 MR. POWELL: I --yeah, I think it's like anything 

6 else. It's an ancillary proceeding dealing with property 

7 rights or something there. You know, obviously, same thing 

8 here, if somebody owns a house -- mineral rights in Las 

9 Vegas or water rights, I guess would be more appropriate 

10 out here 

11 

12 trust. 

MR. MUGAN: But property rights were owned by the 

There's no dispute about that. You know, why you 

13 would go to Texas and then have a false or incorrect 

14 allegation in there and get yourself appointed down there 

15 and try and get the will admitted to probate down there 

16 without noticing my client and the will is the document 

17 that they claim exercised this power of appointment where 

18 my client, you know, doesn't get all the rights -- all of 

19 the money and as soon as my client finds out about it, they 

20 file a -- they intervene and file a motion basically to set 

21 it aside, etcetera, and the matter was scheduled for 

22 hearing and, as I understand it, an expert witness was 

23 supposed to testify, had serious health problems, lS 

24 hospitalized, and so they continued the hearing 

25 indefinitely until the expert witness who is hopefully 
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1 available to testify. Texas has never said -- turned down 

2 jurisdiction; has never said we'll do whatever Nevada 

3 tells. 

4 

That is just not correct. 

MR. POWELL: Well, one is a probate matter and one 

5 lS not a probate matter. The trust matter is this matter; 

6 the probate matter for Marjorie Connell is a Texas matter. 

7 I don't think there's -- I think it's clear they are two 

8 separate things. So I'm not sure -- I am not even sure 

9 what the relevance of Texas as opposed to what we're asking 

10 for here even comes into play. 

11 THE COURT: But see this lS my problem, I'm not --

12 I'm trying to figure out what exactly it is you're asking 

13 for this Court to do and what the best process is --

14 

15 

16 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- to get to a hearing on that. 

MR. POWELL: We're asking for the status quo to go 

17 back which was the whole point of the declaratory judgment 

18 was to say: It's 65/35 like it's been --

19 THE COURT: Well --

20 MR. POWELL: for 33 years. 

21 THE COURT: But it didn't say status quo, it said 

22 we want 

23 MR. POWELL: Well, not ln those terms, but, I 

24 mean, we asked for the declaration that it's 65 percent 

25 interest, 35 percent interest. So, --
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah, I mean, I'm kind of just 

informalizing the relief, but if you see what we're praylng 

for it's the declaration that it's the 35/65 split. 

THE COURT: But I -- but that to me, the 

declaratory relief is seeking a conclusive and permanent 

determination of that 

MR. POWELL: Right. 

THE COURT: -- as opposed to maintaining the 

10 status quo which is a little bit different --

11 MR. POWELL: Right. 

12 THE COURT: -- which lS that pending the outcome 

13 of these various motions, we're golng to --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 14 

15 

16 

THE COURT: -- return to that. 

MR. POWELL: And I and the only thing I can 

17 offer is I guess, you know, we pray ln general, too, for 

18 any other relief the Court may grant and so, to me, it goes 

19 hand-in-hand with -- you know, basically, the whole point 

20 is to get the determination done with and that sets the 

21 record straight. 

22 There has been no declaration despite what Mr. 

23 Mugan says. Show me any order, order -- I want to see the 

24 order that says that Ms. Ahern is entitled to 100 percent. 

25 There was just simply statements in a petition as to that. 
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1 There's no prayer seeking to confirm that. And, agaln, as 

2 Your Honor recognlzes, if that was what -- if that was the 

3 point of what you were going for and you then continued 

4 four years of distributions and some of which were $500,000 

5 plus, where's the gift tax returns? Were those gifts? If 

6 you had your declaration, those must be gifts. You don't 

7 have --

8 THE COURT: Well but -- that -- and that gets us 

9 to the how procedurally do we get there --

10 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

11 THE COURT: -- because I'm trying to figure out 

12 what -- how this thing should go forward. 

13 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

14 THE COURT: I mean, it -- are you just looking for 

15 right now a temporary determination to let the oil and gas 

16 companles in Texas know the Court's assuming jurisdiction 

17 over this, we're going to have a hearing to determine who's 

18 ultimately entitled to this money, until then, continue 

19 with the distributions as you were previously making them, 

20 35 percent to Eleanor, 65 percent to the granddaughters, 

21 and we'll let you know once we've determined--

22 MR. POWELL: That there's an ultimate --

23 

24 

25 

THE COURT: 

MR. POWELL: 

-- who in fact is entitled permanently 

That's fine. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 may be 

7 

THE COURT: -- to this money? 

MR. POWELL: That's fine with us. 

THE COURT: Because 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: --it may be that it's 100 percent, it 

that it remains 65/35. 

MR. POWELL: Right. 

8 THE COURT: We don't know yet. That remalns to be 

9 determined. 

10 MR. POWELL: And what I will tell you, though, lS 

11 when Ms. Ahern decided I'm entitled to 100 percent, she was 

12 taking 100 percent. That's the issue is it was previously 

13 taking 35 percent, 65 percent going to Jacqueline and her 

14 sister, then the plug was pulled, and then from essentially 

15 June, she --

16 THE COURT: You see, I'm not understanding the 

17 logistics of this. Is it the 

18 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

19 THE COURT: -- oil and gas companles that you 

20 notify to stop this or is it a trustee that gets notified? 

21 MR. POWELL: Well, that's the whole thing. The 

22 petition is based on a declaratory ruling that the trustee 

23 must then honor. 

24 Again, we have this weird situation where we've 

25 had 65/35 for 33 years including the last four and then all 
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1 of a sudden, the trustee determines: No, 

2 and the beneficiary being the same person 

the trustee 

3 

4 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: -- no, I'm entitled to 100 percent, 

5 I'm not glvlng you that 65 anymore. I've turned off the 

6 spigot. 

7 

It's done. You're not getting it. 

So that puts my client ln the precarlous position 

8 of: Under what authority are you acting with that? 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

question? 

THE COURT: That's 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: There you go. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

That's my question lS -

THE COURT: -- how do we ultimately get to that 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: It seems to me that that's an 

evidentiary hearing. 

MR. POWELL: I guess. I mean, --

MR. MUGAN: I agree. 

MR. POWELL: I -- the thing is we can go into an 

22 evidentiary hearing, I'm -- your question though is, you 

23 know, basically are you -- do you need discovery? Do you 

24 need any more evidence? There's nothing 

25 THE COURT: Well --
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1 MR. POWELL: more we can offer other than what 

2 we've -- what we already have. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. 

4 MR. POWELL: Tax returns, and all that, yeah. 

5 THE COURT: So then, Mr. Mugan, I understand that 

6 the procedurally you have a motion you want to file, but as 

7 to the status quo, you're let's just say we'll be 

8 returning to the status quo. Your position is, at most, 

9 the undisputed portions should be distributed and I don't 

10 understand if it's the oil and gas companies that aren't 

11 honoring it or if it's your client as the role of trustee. 

12 MR. MUGAN: Yeah. And I apologize if I haven't 

13 made myself clear. 

14 Number one, I'm opposed to returning to the 

15 alleged status quo. 

16 THE COURT: Right. 

17 MR. MUGAN: There was no request for that. There 

18 was a request for a final determination. He can certainly 

19 file and request a temporary order, injunction, whatever, 

20 you know, but that was never prayed for and I think we're 

21 golng beyond the bounds of the pleadings, number one. 

22 Number two, if the Court in its discretion thinks 

23 there should be some type of order entered at this point in 

24 time, the 65 percent should not go to his clients because 

25 that's in dispute. The 65 percent should just be held or 
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1 tied up or put in trusts or whatever until there's a final 

2 determination and my client, there's no dispute that she's 

3 entitled to the 35 percent. 

4 And my understanding lS that the companles are the 

5 ones, you know, who -- they're the ones who issue the 

6 checks, etcetera. They're the ones that have to be 

7 notified, not the trustee. 

8 THE COURT: Okay. Well, here's my concern here is 

9 that I have before me this petition and yes, it does -- I 

10 viewed it as seeking an ultimate ruling. I don't think 

11 we're at the point where we can make an ultimate ruling, 

12 however, you know, the concern I have is that these Courts 

13 in Texas are taking action based on just getting a letter 

14 from an attorney that-- and there's-- I have this whole 

15 question of whether the Texas Court is doing anything with 

16 respect to this, but my point is that who would be ordered 

17 to -- is it an order saylng: Resume your distributions, 

18 the trustee's ordered to impound the 65 percent and not 

19 make any distributions of the 65 percent, she's entitled to 

20 her 35 percent as the beneficiary? 

21 Because the whole point is I understand your 

22 concern lS that if the granddaughters aren't entitled to 

23 it, how do you claw it back, but if it's-- but their 

24 concern lS: Wait a minute, we don't want to go back to the 

25 -- to her getting 100 percent because we think 65 percent 
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1 of that lS ours and how do we claw it back? 

2 MR. POWELL: How about a bond? 

3 THE COURT: Pardon? 

4 MR. POWELL: How about a bond? I mean, if the 

5 assertion lS essentially we can't glve it to you because we 

6 think you're golng to go and take it and then we can't ever 

7 get it back from you, how about a bond? I mean, that seems 

8 to me to be 

9 THE COURT: Well -- and so that's, I guess, a 

10 point is at some point in time is this something that can 

11 be ruled on in this point in time or do we need to have a 

12 separate motion on it? It seems to me that I can go 

13 forward and say that it's undisputed that 35 percent of 

14 this money should be going to Eleanor and she is that 

15 beneficiary, but to the extent that the -- my concern lS 

16 just that there's oil and companles that are out there who 

17 are responding to letters from attorneys. I've never seen 

18 any company respond to a letter from an attorney. 

19 

20 

MR. POWELL: Yes. 

THE COURT: I'm shocked that they did, but 

21 apparently oil and gas law in Texas is unique --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 22 

23 THE COURT: -- and they actually are responslve to 

24 claims for their --

25 MR. MUGAN: Well, --
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1 THE COURT: -- oil rights because they don't want 

2 to end up paying them twice. 

3 

4 

MR. POWELL: Right. 

THE COURT: So if there's some direction to say: 

5 Go ahead and make the distributions to the trustee and the 

6 trustee is directed because I -- she is a Nevada resident 

7 and we certainly have jurisdiction over her. The trustee, 

8 in her capacity as trustee of this trust, lS directed that 

9 she can distribute the undisputed portion of the funds to 

10 herself but the 65 percent needs to be held until further 

11 order and then --

12 

13 

14 golng to 

15 

16 

17 

18 What's 

19 

20 

MR. POWELL: I 

THE COURT: we have to figure out how we're 

go about getting to how we determine who's got the 

MR. POWELL: And --

THE COURT: -- entitlement to that 65 percent? 

MR. POWELL: -- I guess -- yeah. 

THE COURT: -- the process? 

21 MR. POWELL: You direct us because I think that's 

22 where it's ultimately going to come down to lS how we do 

23 this. If you want me to come back and seek an injunction, 

24 I -- what I was trying to do with this declaratory ruling 

25 is skip all the steps, go right to the heart of the issue, 
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1 and set forth to you we've had 33 years of precedent --

2 THE COURT: I understand but --

3 MR. POWELL: That's only changed 

4 THE COURT: I don't know that we can do --

5 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

6 THE COURT: I appreciate the interest ln the 

7 judicial economy, --

8 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

9 THE COURT: -- however, I'm not sure we can get 

10 there --

11 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

12 THE COURT: -- ln one big leap because I do think 

13 that it requires steps --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 14 

15 THE COURT: -- and it's because I've got these 

16 other parties involved here and --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 17 

18 THE COURT: -- I -- this Court-- if you're 

19 saylng: Will this Court today enter an order directing 

20 these oil and gas companles ln Texas to resume their 

21 distributions, which I guess means it goes to the trustee 

22 and the trustee has been ordered to do the 65/35? Yeah, I 

23 have no problem in saying: Oil and gas companles in Texas, 

24 go ahead, we've taken this under consideration. We will 

25 deal with this at the trust level. It's not a problem for 
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1 you, oil and gas company. Pay your royalties the way 

2 you're supposed to be, make those distributions. I'm golng 

3 to direct the trustee what to do because I control that 

4 trustee. 

5 MR. POWELL: 

6 with that. That's --

7 THE COURT: 

8 MR. POWELL: 

9 THE COURT: 

10 you're entitled to 35 

11 MR. POWELL: 

Yeah. And I don't have a problem 

Okay. 

totally fine. 

And my ruling to that trustee is 

percent and nobody says you're not. 

Yeah. The only thing I would ask 

12 though just to keep fairness is for the last distributions 

13 that have gone back, I think starting in June, it was less 

14 than 65/35, is requlre the trustee -- again, if we're 

15 keeping it all fair here is to go back, put that money back 

16 in that same 65 percent category that's ln dispute. She 

17 can have 35 percent of June, July, August, September, 

18 October. Take the 35, but that other 65, put that back ln 

19 the pot, too. 

20 THE COURT: You know, I have no idea how much 

21 money this lS involved here --

22 MR. POWELL: It's a lot. 

23 MR. MUGAN: That --

24 THE COURT: No, but my point lS, 

25 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 
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1 THE COURT: I don't know how much -- at what 

2 point did these oil and gas companies stop distributing any 

3 money. All I'm saying is my only point of what I want to 

4 do here lS to tell these oil and gas companies stop 

5 responding to letters from attorneys. An 

6 MR. MUGAN: Your Honor, 

7 THE COURT: -- attorney can't tell an oil and gas 

8 company what to do. 

9 MR. POWELL: Sure. 

10 THE COURT: Make your distributions. The trustee 

11 lS golng to do the following. 

12 MR. MUGAN: But, Your Honor, we've gotten several 

13 of them straightened out. Basically -- my client, of 

14 course, has Texas counsel, too, and we've gotten several of 

15 them straightened out. Apache just happened, just 

16 happened. I think the letter was dated November or October 

17 29th or something and we're just getting it straightened out 

18 with them. 

19 Again, I think we're golng way past what was asked 

20 here and, you know, if you want to do it on a separate 

21 motion, that's fine. In the interim, we may get the spigot 

22 turned back on. You know, I mean, we just keep moving down 

23 the road, you know, and kind of making predeterminations 

24 that I just don't think are proper. 

25 THE COURT: What's wrong with what I suggested 
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1 that we go to -- we tell these oil and gas companles that 

2 you don't have to honor this letter from this attorney, 

3 start making distributions to this trustee, the trustee lS 

4 directed she has to in her role as a beneficiary is 

5 entitled to 35 percent. She's got to hold 65 percent. 

6 What's wrong with that? 

7 MR. MUGAN: There's nothing wrong with it except 

8 that it does prejudice my client. It wasn't -- he never 

9 asked for that in his petition. He had the right to ask 

10 for that, for a temporary injunction, a restraining order, 

11 etcetera. It was never requested. I mean, all of a sudden 

12 we have to address it right now and I, you know, that's 

13 fine. That's fine. But I just again, I think we're 

14 golng down the road in making some predeterminations that 

15 were never requested, you know, and it's just, you know, 

16 return to the status quo, well then go back three months, 

17 go back 

18 

19 

20 

THE COURT: 

MR. MUGAN: 

21 We're just going--

22 THE COURT: 

I never said I was willing to go back 

I know, but that's where we're golng. 

I appreciate that. I never said I'm 

23 willing to go back any period of time. All I'm saying is 

24 that as of today's date when I have what's before me what 

25 technically is an unopposed motion for declaratory relief 
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1 that my only -- the only thing I'm willing to do is to say 

2 to these Texas oil and gas companies, whoever they may be, 

3 you do not have to honor that letter from counsel. I am 

4 telling you that 35 percent of this is the undisputed 

5 property of this beneficiary, pay your distributions to the 

6 trust, and I'm ordering the trustee to hold 65 percent of 

7 it, to not make a distribution as to 65 percent of it. 

MR. MUGAN: That's fine. 8 

9 THE COURT: And then we -- we're golng to set this 

10 out for a hearing at some point in the future because I 

11 think, as you've said, your opposition -- your first thing 

12 is we have this opposition that it shouldn't even be 

13 that there's nothing to be heard because it's already been 

14 ruled on. You've got your right to do the motion to 

15 dismiss. Mr. Powell's got the right to oppose it and then 

16 we wanted to get there much faster than this, but 

17 procedurally I just think you can't. I think you have to 

18 follow the procedural steps. So we have to follow the 

19 procedural steps. 

20 I think ultimately this petition for declaratory 

21 relief may not be whether it requires a lot of discovery, 

22 but I think that there's still going to have to be 

23 documents produced and you need to come ln for a hearing. 

24 So we need to probably put it out 60 or 90 days and have a 

25 hearing. And, in the interim, if you've got a motion to 
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1 file, you can file your motion and we can rule on that, but 

2 I think it's got to be out at least 60 days for the hearing 

3 on the declaratory relief and I think that there needs to 

4 be testimony. 

5 MR. POWELL: And would that be -- that would be a 

6 final determination at that point? That won't just be --

7 THE COURT: That's the petition for --

8 MR. POWELL: Okay. That will be hearing the 

9 petition on the merits? 

10 THE COURT: On the merits. 

11 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

12 THE COURT: Right. 

13 MR. MUGAN: Yeah. I -- 60 days, to me, lS a 

14 little short especially with the holiday season. 

THE COURT: Okay. 15 

16 MR. MUGAN: You know, I think we should be out at 

17 least 90 days. 

18 

19 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. MUGAN: We are golng to have to do some 

20 discovery. You know, we have people down ln Texas, 

21 etcetera. So I would ask at least 90 days. 

22 

23 

THE COURT: All right. 

MR. POWELL: Just to clarify for the Court, too, 

24 though, this was already -- this was filed ln September. 

25 So there's already been almost a month and a half here to 
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1 do a lot of fact gathering and fact finding. 

THE COURT: Yeah, and that's--2 

3 MR. POWELL: So to just -- and, agaln, it -- and I 

4 don't have a problem with what you're --

5 THE COURT: Well 

6 MR. POWELL: -- saylng lS 

7 THE COURT: I think Mr. Mug an was only recently 

8 retained though because I think there was this whole 

9 problem about --

10 MR. POWELL: No, he was retained --

11 THE COURT: October. 

12 MR. POWELL: -- pretty quickly on. In fact, I 

13 even gave him a continuance --

THE COURT: In October? 14 

15 MR. POWELL: Yeah. And so, I -- you know, agaln, 

16 we have the whole thing of who is really being choked off 

17 here and, again, there's not a problem with what you were 

18 suggesting which is go back to oil and gas say: 65/35, 

19 keep it coming; 65 stays in trust until the determination, 

20 35 goes out to Ms. Ahern. That's not a problem. 

21 The only thing I would suggest though is, agaln, 

22 my clients, who rely on this for their living expenses, 

23 this is --my client, just so you're aware, and this will 

24 be raised further, my client quit her job on reliance --

25 THE COURT: Okay. 
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1 MR. POWELL: -- on this. So, it's a situation 

2 where and, agaln, I just want to be forthcoming so -- to 

3 which sets up my next question which lS ln the meantime, lS 

4 there -- lS it problematic for me, and, agaln, I don't want 

5 to do anything that upsets you, can I come ln for 

6 injunctive relief to have the 65 continue to flow with 

7 something like a bond? 

8 THE COURT: That would be -- yeah, that's a 

9 different issue. 

10 

11 

12 

13 now, I'm 

14 that 

15 

16 

17 

18 golng to 

19 

20 

21 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: That's a different lSSue and 

MR. POWELL: Because that's -- I'll tell you right 

going to come back in as soon as possible then on 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: -- just yeah. 

THE COURT: That's what I'm saylng lS I'm not 

rule on anything other than 

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

THE COURT: -- I just want the oil -­

MR. POWELL: Understood. 

22 THE COURT: -- and gas companles to start sending 

23 the money to the trust --

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Understood. 

THE COURT: -- and the trust can deal with it ln 
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1 accordance --

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

MR. POWELL: Understood. Yeah. Understood. 

THE COURT: It can be held and I have --

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- no reason that it wouldn't be. 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: So that's my only-- the only thing 

8 I'm prepared to do today lS 

9 

10 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: -- I'm denying the request to remand 

11 this back to the Commissioner. I --

12 

13 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: -- think it's ultimately golng to have 

14 to be heard here anyway. 

15 

16 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: Step number two, set this out. Let's 

17 go 90 days. 

18 MR. POWELL: Okay. 

19 THE COURT: And that glves everybody time to file 

20 these interim motions that they wish to feel. 

21 

22 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: Mr. Mugan's golng to want to file his 

23 motion to dismiss this thing in its entirety. 

24 

25 

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

THE COURT: Your clients may wish to seek some 
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1 distributions. 

2 

3 

MR. POWELL: Yes. 

THE COURT: I just -- my only point right now is 

4 just if these oil and gas companies are holding onto this 

5 money for no reason other than an attorney sent them a 

6 demand letter which I just find --

7 

8 

9 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

MR. POWELL: 

I don't think it was a demand letter. 

mind boggling. 

I think it was just -- I don't think 

10 it was a demand letter, I think it was just a notification 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

letter of just so you are aware, this lS what's pending. 

THE COURT: Okay. 

MR. POWELL: And from what I understand, that's 

the way it's done there. I don't think there's --

THE COURT: Like I said, 

MR. POWELL: I don't --

THE COURT: maybe. I don't think any of us 

presumes to represent 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. Out here, I know it's a shock 

THE COURT: -- to know anything about --

MR. POWELL: -- that you can send a letter to 

23 anybody and they'll do anything. So--

24 MR. MUGAN: I can read the letter to you and it's 

25 a demand letter. 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: Yeah. Okay. So here's my point. At 

this juncture, this is the procedure and I don't know what 

it would take ln an order that would satisfy these oil and 

gas companles that they can begin distributions. It may be 

all it needs to say is the Court is assuming jurisdiction 

for this petition for declaratory relief. It appears 

undisputed that the 35 percent -- so that the Court makes a 

finding that as to the 35 percent, Ms. Ahern's entitled to 

that. The 65 percent should be held by the trust. 

Hopefully that will satisfy the oil and gas 

companies that they're off the hook and that it's going to 

be litigation involving the trust and it doesn't involve 

the oil and gas companies. 

MR. MUGAN: Maybe the best thing would be for Mr. 

Powell and I, you know, to contact our respective co-Texas 

counsel and they can -- they know more about oil and gas 

companles than I think both of us would ever know and make 

sure that that's the way to do it and that the oil 

companles will do what they're told that way and then we'll 

just prepare an order for you. 

THE COURT: Right because 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

THE COURT: -- if Mr. Powell wants to see his 

25 clients get some money in the interim, there's no point ln 
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1 asking for that if the oil and gas companles aren't sending 

2 it. 

3 

4 

MR. POWELL: Right. 

THE COURT: So we need the oil and gas companles 

5 to send the money. 

6 MR. POWELL: Yeah. And that makes --

7 

8 

THE COURT: So --

MR. POWELL: --logical sense. We'll figure out 

9 what they need to do that but then we're, just for the 

10 record, we're preserving that we will have you Slgn an 

11 order to that effect basically saylng you're hereby 

12 demanded to continue the 65 -- well, pay 100 percent of the 

13 proceeds, 65 must be held by the trustee and 

14 THE COURT: Correct. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

MR. POWELL: -- 35 to Ms. Ahern. 

THE COURT: Correct. 

MR. POWELL: So, yeah. 

THE COURT: But the -- it's strictly an lSSue as -

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

21 THE COURT: -- as under the trust, shouldn't 

22 that these third parties don't need to be involved in it 

23 any further. It's litigation with the trust. This Court's 

24 got the jurisdiction. This Court will make that finding 

25 and, you know, proceed accordingly. 

63 

AA 0269



1 

2 

MR. MUGAN: And 

THE COURT: And that's if we put it out 90 

3 days, you can file your respective motions and we can maybe 

4 get all this stuff resolved in the interim, but at the 

5 earliest the declaratory relief would be heard would be, 

6 you know, 90 days in the future which would be -- and we 

7 might need to --

8 

9 

MR. MUGAN: Maybe a status check, I don't know. 

THE COURT: I was going to say we might need to 

10 put it actually on a stack to actually give you like a date 

11 for an evidentiary hearing, but -- so it would probably be 

12 better to let you know what our stack looks like in 

13 February. Would it be February? 

14 THE CLERK: Yeah, February 17th. We have one med-

15 mal that starts on the lOth. 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

glve you 

THE COURT: Okay. 

THE CLERK: That was before we changed our 

THE COURT: Okay. So February 17th lS 

THE CLERK: We have a preferential 

THE COURT: probate. 

THE CLERK: [indiscernible]. 

THE COURT: Okay. So it will be a status check 

a hearing date for your --

MR. POWELL: On the 17th will be a status check? 

THE COURT: Correct, for your actual --
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1 

2 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: It's not golng to be the actual 

3 evidentiary hearing, but we'll hopefully have enough 

4 information that we can give you a date that day. 

5 

6 

7 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

MR. MUGAN: I just 

THE CLERK: The 17th in our department lS on 

8 calendar call --

THE COURT: What's calendar call? 9 

10 THE CLERK: The 24th of January. That's the trial 

11 stack [indiscernible] 

12 

13 

MR. MUGAN: I 

THE COURT: Okay. So -- okay. I guess it might 

14 be -- yeah, we might be better off then seelng you at the 

15 calendar calls for that stack which is Friday, the 24th, and 

16 we'll be able to tell you if there's any time on that stack 

17 that we can go because we do have one med-mal and one 

18 MR. MUGAN: That's February 24th 
' Your Honor? 

19 THE COURT: No, January 24th. 

20 MR. POWELL: January. 

21 THE COURT: And it's the calendar calls that 

22 correspond to that stack that starts February 

23 

24 

25 

THE CLERK: 17th through March 14th. 

THE COURT: Yeah. 

MR. MUGAN: And by way of full disclosure, Your 
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1 Honor, and I don't know if it will affect the thinking at 

2 all, and we can deal with it later if we have to, if in 

3 fact this ends up going to an evidentiary hearing and our 

4 motion to dismiss is not successful, there are going to be 

5 some counterclaims made by my client in this matter --

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

COURT: 

MUGAN: 

COURT: 

MUGAN: 

COURT: 

Okay. 

-- that are 

And I think 

golng to 

at that 

involve some things. 

point ln time, on the 24th 

11 if it's not going to be ready to go, if we ruled on all 

12 those other motions in the interim, then it may or may not 

13 be ready to go. It's a calendar call just to see if we can 

14 get you on that stack, but I -- because until we actually 

15 see what the pleadings are, you know, who knows. I just 

16 want to make sure that we've got this calendar and the 

17 declaratory relief petition is calendared. If it has to be 

18 continued, it has to be continued, but we've got a date for 

19 it which will be on that stack, that February 17th and I 

20 think the first day of that stack might be a holiday. So, 

21 you know, just keeping in mind that --

22 

23 

MR. POWELL: Okay. 

THE COURT: -- if the first day of the stack lS a 

24 holiday, then it won't go -- obviously it won't go -- just 

25 like yesterday was a holiday for us, the -- you know, 
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1 that's just the first day. It doesn't necessarily mean it 

2 can go on that day because of the holiday and whatever else 

3 we can figure out with respect to anybody who has a 

4 preference on it. 

5 MR. POWELL: Okay. What time lS your calendar on 

7 THE COURT: On January 24th? 

8 MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

9 THE CLERK: The calendar calls are --

10 THE COURT: 9 a.m.? 

11 THE CLERK: No. They're late. I'll have to get 

12 that to him. 

13 MR. MUGAN: Aren't they at 11? 

14 THE COURT: That's right. 

15 THE CLERK: 11 lS [indiscernible] 

16 THE COURT: Yeah. They're 11 because we have them 

17 after regular motions. 

18 MR. POWELL: 11. 

19 MR. MUGAN: Yeah, I was thinking it was 11 but I 

20 might be wrong. 

21 THE CLERK: It's 11. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. Sorry about that. 11 a.m. 

23 MR. POWELL: 11 a.m. 

24 And, Judge, just lastly, I know you want to move 

25 on with your day, but just for the record agaln, we have ln 
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1 -- our declaratory judgment petition asked for the fees, 

2 costs, and damages. So we just wanted to preserve that 

3 that we have requested it --

4 

5 

6 

THE COURT: Right. 

MR. POWELL: -- and everything related. So, --

THE COURT: Yeah, exactly. That's why I said I'm 

7 not making any rulings on any other request for relief. 

8 

9 

10 on that 

11 

12 

13 ruling 

14 

15 

MR. POWELL: Sure. 

THE COURT: The petition itself lS set to be heard 

MR. POWELL: 

THE COURT: 

Yeah. 

-- date. 

MR. POWELL: Yeah. 

This lS just a preliminary 

THE COURT: -- and the only reason is I'm just 

16 concerned about, you know, these -- a foreign state that 

17 they're somehow holding up -- I mean, the whole thing's 

18 moot if they're not going to distribute any money. 

19 MR. POWELL: Right. And just, again, foreshadow, 

20 we will be COmlng back ln shortly 

21 THE COURT: Sure. 

22 MR. POWELL: -- on a petition, too. 

23 THE COURT: I'll expect to see that and I'll 

24 expect to see the motion to dismiss ln its entirety. 

25 MR. POWELL: Yep. Exactly. 
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1 THE COURT: Okay. Without prejudice, I'm not 

2 making any findings or any rulings 

3 MR. POWELL: Right. 

4 THE COURT: -- on anything. It's all golng to be 

5 argued unfortunately [indiscernible] the interest and let's 

6 get right to the point, but I don't see any way to do it 

7 other than a set time. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

THE 

MR. 

POWELL: Okay. 

COURT: Okay. So --

MUGAN: Thank you, Your Honor. 

COURT: -- all right. 

POWELL: Thank you, Your Honor. 

COURT: Thanks. 

POWELL: Appreciate the time. 

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 11:04 A.M. 

* * * * * 
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3 

4 I certify that the foregoing is a correct transcript from 
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